SwIa}l UoOIPY

(821A13s |elIISIUIW Ul uosiad Ae| ‘epedeH Jor
® “JU10d JJOM Dd4 Jo} 12Aeuad Buipnpul) 4aAeud Buiso|d  00:¢
nQ buloo

uodau spu3|D pajels
Jodau su9]Agsald |BIBURDH-0D  GPiT

(21992 ® Apor) 0z uer wouy Jodal- 19sAan-plojueis
aoe|d pue aiep 195 — A433AQsaad J9qUSAON
(Apor) A1mAgsaud J4a1pe|n yum diysuoneley
(Apor) »J3|D pa3els 10j d9RIWWO0D ydiess
diysisquiaw DN
Aanauns bupjewadesad
¢A21Agsaud 0] uollepuswiwoday
Aed 1,uop sayoinyd uaym — uolssndsip eyded dod
(s1qga@/ueq) malaal |epueuly T0Z 0€:CT

-HONN1 ST:¢CT

(esaua]) diysiopy °s
suolnedo|e awll 'y
sdiysiejoyos duwed 104 oD wod) 3sanbal - bulsyo ¢
(s1ay3o 3 1sns) ybnoiyi-mo|joy
/U0ISSNDSip/uoileluasald away) UoISSIy ‘¢
(s1998Q
g BS2J9] ) ssadold pue sjuswubisse sjuswpuswy T
bBuijesw AlaiAqsald £-9 yodep Joj ueld ST:TT
sanljiqisuodsay jeuoneziuebiQ

s|eos §T0z BUIge) diysispes

31qgaq - 21N1ONJ1S MaU J0J W3] MIIADY
uonejuawajdwi uoisiA pue jenyuids 0£:0T
Bbuibeinooug pue buiddinb3g

(esada]) - piop au3 ul Bulema

MSTOTZ ‘PT Aenuer jo sainuiw jo |erosddy

1Dop Jo |eaoudde ‘wnaonb ‘fjed |0y
a|pued 1s1yD Jo bunybi g uoAeid Buiuado 00:0T
diysmojlo4  0€:6
Jayiebo] Bunsyien

LW ‘sbuljjig ‘maipuy "3s sbuljig
STOZ ‘0T q°d
uIqe) diysiapes] 2uolsMmo||dA Jo A191Aqsald

AoUyiabol bupnjiom,,
Buiueaw 50Ad3Ano ‘sobia-uls
334D ayz wiody :ABIdUAS 4

'sdiysuoinje|al pue ‘suoijoe

‘Splom UNo U] ‘papuRLULIOD DIB M
se ‘Buiniss pue buiao] smaN pooo
s,1s14YyD Bueys pue BulApoquis

" p|MOM 3Y] pue ‘eUuBlUO
‘SaIIuNWIWod 1no uj uolssiw
S,ASHYD ul 3syD ulof 0y A0 09

‘slapes| buiuiesy

pue Buijioddns Ajjeninw pue {poo
03 asuodsa. buinoj ul Buiddiysiom
saniunwiwiod Jno buoedul

‘yirey 1no buaeys A|ge 3s1yD

21| aJow Bujwodaq Ajjeuonualul
'+ " |]2dson ay) buiaj) Joy siopes|
pue suonebalibuod bupew-ajdidsip

' xADIDUAS
|enyiids pue Auo|b s,por) 1oy

Joy3abo] tey3en
TTIIIMOM

"1S1YD SNsa[
10 DA0| 243 Ul pa1004 AJJUNWIWOD

e si--1aAeud pue ‘juds A|OH

2y3 ‘aumydLIos AQ pauleisns pue
popinb — A193Aqsald dUOISMO|IBA

UOISIA INQO



2015 Leadership Cabinet Goals

IDEAS
Improve Communication within and

beyond the Presbytery

e Susan Thomas has volunteered to help
develop a presbytery newsletter

e Y time co-general presbyters needs to
be interpreted widely

e Presbytery Sunday

e Getting info into congregations is big
challenge

Spiritual Nurture of pastors and leaders

e Prayer

¢ Sharing/embodying the Gospel

e |nvolvement in clusters

e Meaningful presbytery meetings

e Vision statement — communicate to
congregations

Building Community in the preshytery
e Connect congregations
e Presbytery Sunday
e Mentorship
e Interconnection at multiple levels
e Presbytery resourcing congregations

Staff Transition — Stated Clerk
¢ Select and support Search Committee
e Oct. 9-11, 2015 —New Stated Clerk
training in Portland, OR, with
Association of Stated Clerks mtg



Presbytery of Yellowstone
Leadership Cabinet Meeting Minutes
January 14, 2015
1°' Church, Bozeman, Montana

Moderator Jody called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.

Present were: Absent:
Jody McDevitt Don Holland
Debbie Blackburn

Dan Holland

Teresa Kendall

Dave Kimball

Jed Cauffman

Susi Ennis

Also Present:

George Goodrich, Co-General Presbyter
Kathy Goodrich, Co-General Presbyter
Ron Hanson, Stated Clerk

Suzanne Bratsky

Opening Prayer — The opening prayer was offered by Jody.
Christ Candle — Jody read the Litany of the Christ Candle and lit the Christ Candle.
Quorum - The Clerk declared that a Quorum was present.
Docket — The docket was approved.
Resignation of Member — Jody announced that Don Holland has resigned from the Leadership Cabinet
as he is unable to attend most meetings.
6. Minutes of October 14, 2014, October 22, 2014 and November 6, 2014
v The LC voted to approve the minutes of the meetings of October 14, 2014, October 22, 2014 and
November 6, 2014.
7. Dwelling in the Word — Jody led Dwelling in the Word focusing on 1 Samuel 3:1-10. There was a time of
sharing what this Scripture is saying to individuals and to us as Leadership Cabinet.
8. Review Team — Debbie reported that the Review Team does not have any specific recommendations
for Presbytery at this time. Communication is still a critical item for the structure to succeed. It
was noted that the clusters are growing but generally do not include RE involvement. The Leadership
Cabinet has responsibility for Mission as there is no Ministry Team or Task Force for this. Getting more
frequent reports from Ministry Team Moderators was suggested. Also more communication between the
LC and the coordinators of the clusters might be helpful.
9. Leadership Cabinet 2015 Goals — Time was spent looking at goals for 2015. The four broad areas of
most concern were Experimentation (including communication), Building Community, Spiritual
Nurture of Pastors and Leaders, and Stated Clerk Transition.
10. Proposed Amendments — There was a time of discussion on the various amendments that will be
considered at the March Presbytery Meeting. The PMT is working on amendments 14-B and 14-C Ron is
looking at Amendment 14-D and Susan Thomas is looking at Amendment 14-C. Debbie and Teresa will
work on a plan for presentation of the Amendments.
v The LC voted to recommend that Presbytery approve Amendment 14-1 (Confession of Belhar). Either
Dan or Jody will give an explanation of why to vote yes on this Amendment.
v The LC voted to recommend that Presbytery approve Amendment 14-E.
v The LC voted to have a printed ballot prepared beforehand with all amendments on it. Ron will prepare
the ballot.
11. Lunch - The LC took a short break to gather food for lunch. Susi offered prayer for the meal.
12. PW Report — Suzanne Bratsky gave an update on activities of PW. She stressed how important it is to
have communication from the LC.
13. Presbytery Meeting Planning — As previously agreed the theme for 2015 meetings will focus on

1

el Rt



Mission. We were reminded that a few years ago the Presbytery initiated a local mission project to take
place right before the start of Presbytery meetings. Jody’'s power point presentation will be included at
the March meeting. Susi Ennis will convene a group to do further planning for the mission part of the
meeting.

14. Financial Review for 2014 — This review was postponed until next meeting as the end of year financial
reports were not available.

15. Grant Request from Presby Cats - A grant request for help with a spring mission trip had been
received from Presby Cats. There was some discussion about which fund should be used.

v The LC voted to approve the grant request of $2,500 for Presby Cats from Equip and Encourage Fund.

16. Request for approval of zip line lease extension (FPC Bozeman)

v The LC voted to approve the lease extension request from FPC Bozeman (no financial implications for

YP).

17. Search Committee for Stated Clerk — Jody pointed out that there will be Stated Clerk training in

Portland on October 9-11, 2015 so it would be good for our new stated clerk to be able to attend which
means that the selection process would need to be completed before then. Dan Holland agreed

to be the LC representative (not the moderator) on the committee. Jody will contact the three people

suggested as other members of the committee.

18. Relationship with Glacier Presbytery —Jody, Debbie B, Teresa, and George will work with a group
from Glacier about ways we might partner together. There will probably not be a convocation in
November of 2015. The covenant between the two Presbyteries for the convocation has not been
renewed at this time. It was also noted that we need to pursue working with other Presbyteries as well.

19. Stanford-Geyser update — The Pastoral Listening Team for Stanford along with Jody (representing the
LC) will be traveling to Stanford on January 20, 2015 to meet with the Stanford session as well as
other interested people from Stanford and Geyser.

20. Extending the Docket

v LC voted to extend the docket to 2:10 p.m.

21. Whitworth Partnership Update —The Dream Grant from the denomination is still pending. Whitworth is
interested in pursuing rural ministry in Montana. A representative from Whitworth is schedule to visit YP
in late January for further discussions.

22. Co-General Presbyters Report — A written report was received. George mentioned that the cluster
groups are emerging as a real positive element of the new structure. Also YP is on Facebook. Tom Long
will be giving a seminar at First Bozeman on July 25, 2015. Tom will be here in connection with the 50™
Anniversary of St Timothy's Chapel.

23. Stated Clerk’s Report — Ron indicated that mailings for the year end reports had been completed. The
request for increase in liability insurance has been sent. Ron is working with Mark Parker on an
advertisement for the Mildred church. Ron continues to work on an electronic form of the Administrative
Manual

24. Next Meeting — The next regularly scheduled meeting is February 10, 2015 in Billings.

25. Adjournment - Jody gave the closing prayer and the meeting was adjourned at 2:30 pm.



Narrative Report
Yellowstone Presbytery
Budget & Finance
February 10 Leadership Cabinet Meeting

Our report has several attachments, which serve to supplement this narrative. The attachments
are the various year end reports prepared by our Treasurer, Sheryl Hallin.

Those of you new to the Cabinet may not yet be familiar with these reports, so I thought it might
be instructive to briefly describe them. The balance sheet lists the assets, liabilities, and various
fund balances of the Presbytery at year end. It is akin to taking a snapshot of our financial
position at midnight on December 31, 2014. The P&L reports list all of the items of income and
expense that occurred throughout the entire twelve month period on both the Program and the
Administrative portions of our budget. You will notice that there are both detailed and condensed
versions of these reports.

I point this out, because it is quite likely I will not be in attendance at the meeting. I am also
proposing action to be taken on these reports. You may have noticed that the bottom line on the
P&L reports is exactly zero. This is because transfers have been made from the various reserve
and designated funds to bolster what otherwise would have been a deficit in the two general
operating funds. This has been a fairly routine procedure in years past, however in light of our
precarious financial status we want to emphasize this transaction more than ever. In fact, we
want to memorialize it with the following action:

Proposal. That the Leadership Cabinet would authorize the following transfers necessary to
balance the general operating funds:

For the Program Fund - $2,086.98 from Program Reserve (3.03.2805)

For the Admin. Fund - $4,606.03 from Admin Reserve (3.02.2800)
$15,000.00 from Springhill Fund (3.65.2825)

Discussion. These transfer amounts are far less than what was originally budgeted to be needed,
which is a good thing. Through a combination of greater than expected income and less than
expected expenditures we are able to retain over $50,000 in reserves that otherwise would have
been utilized. This, in turn, extends the life expectancy of the Presbytery. Praise be to God.

Respectfully Submitted,
Dan Holland, Budget & Finance

406-388-0878
dihollandcpa@mindspring.com







Presbytery of Yellowstone - Bozeman MT
Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2014

Friday, January 23, 2015 Page 1 of 2
Account # Account Name Beginning YTD Balance
Balance
Assets
1.00.1010.0000  Checking Account #3133214 55,684.24 53,375.64
1.00.1020.0000  Petty Cash 22.18 22.18
1.00.1030.0000  Money Market #129013355 184,271.83 184,514.11
1.00.1031.0000 St Timothy M. M #1 #3531961 4,143.22 4,046.53
1.00.1032.0000  St. Timothy MM #2 #129013686 2,597.40 2,526.22
Total Current Assets $246,718.87 $244,484.68
1.00.1040.0000  Beartooth Electric Coop 1,337.70 1,337.70
Total Other Assets $1,337.70 $1,337.70
1.00.1065.0000 St Timothy Chapel #1 52001085 237,050.29 254,311.80
1.00.1070.0000 St Timothy Chapel #2 52006024 98,376.65 102,460.72
1.00.1075.0000  Bozeman Campus 000104537 73,986.51 57,651.62
1.00.1080.0000  Partnership Fund MM 129013793 45,198.24 45,230.52
Total Principal Restricted $454,611.69 $459,654.66
Total Assets $702,668.26 $705,477.04
Liabilities
2.00.2120.1000  Payroll - Federal 705.58 618.02
2.00.2120.2000  Payroll State 1,471.00 81.00
2.00.2140.0000  G. Goodrich Flex Plan 0.37) (0.53)
2.00.2141.0000  S. Seibert Flex Plan 0.21) 0.37)
Total Payroll Liabilities $2,176.00 $698.12
Total Liabilities $2,176.00 $698.12
Fund Balance
3.02.2800.0000  General - Administrative 12,861.10 8,255.07
3.03.2805.0000  General - Program 39,223.95 37,136.97
3.04.2700.0000  General - Restricted Admin. 45,587.77 45,587.77
Total General Fund Balance $97,672.82 $90,979.81
3.19.2815.0000  Camp Scholarship Camp. & Youth 935.71 576.56
3.27.2825.0000  Clergy Emergency Fund COM 1,840.00 1,786.00
3.32.2832.0000  Convocation 0.00 1,000.00
3.39.2840.0000 Linda Hofer Education 10,584 .93 10,584.93
3.43.2845.0000  Equip and Encourage 40,480.44 36,830.44
3.47.2850.0000  Partnership- Available COM 1,666.69 1,698.97
3.49.2700.0000  Co-General Presbyters' Discretionary 2,150.00 1,546.94
3.51.2855.0000  Peace Making Offering Mission 606.55 1,214.19
3.56.1220.0000  Special Offering Other Fund 0.00 60.30
3.63.2870.0000  Revamp Camp -Camp. & Youth 0.00 380.95
3.65.2825.0000  Springhill Funds 15,000.00 15,000.00
3.67.2875.0000  St. Timothy's Money Market #1 4,143.22 4,046.53
3.68.2877.0000 St Timonthy Money Market #2 2,724.56 2,653.38
3.75.2885.0000  Social Justice 10,789.89 11,032.17
3.85.2850.0000  Westminister Spires Camp Upgrades Balance (912.91) 3,066.70
Total Designated funds $90,009.08 $91,478.06
3.37.2800.0000  Funds Awaiting Cabinet Action Balance 1,760.00 3,760.00
3.69.2825.0000  Triennium Balance 2,387.07 4,887.07
3.86.2850.0000  Grant - Evangelism Balance 1,250.13 1,250.13
3.90.2910.0000  Higher Education Grant Fund 73,986.51 57,651.62



Presbytery of Yellowstone - Bozeman MT
Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2014

Friday, January 23, 2015 Page 2 of 2

Account # Account Name Beginning YTD Balance
Balance

3.92.2920.0000  St.Tumothys #1 (PC USA) Found 237,050.29 254311.80

3.93.2921.0000  St. Timothys #2 (PC USA) Found 98,376.65 102,460.72

3.94.2930.0000  Partnership Fund Principal COM 43,999.71 43.999.71

Total Restricted Fund Balances $458,810.36 $468,321.05

3.66.2850.0000  West Yellowstone Funds Balance 54.000.00 54,000.00

Total Fund Balance $700,492.26 $704,778.92

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $702.668.26 $705.477.04



I€°68Y$ 00°SP9‘cS 6V°SSTES | £ 254 soxe] [[olded

S0°LTI 00051 C6'CE 000 saxg [ wewho[dwoun 0078 00L9°10°S

00°6LE 00°SLE 000 000 souemsul dwo) o 0018 00L9°10°S

(LS 000Z1°¢ #LSTTIE 185 274 AJUnoag [BI00S/AIBIIPIN  008€°00L9°10°S

0T TITS 00°00v$ 08°887% 00°0$ saIpog I3 03 SANEIIR(

0C 01 00°0S 086t 0070 PYPO sNEIPA - 0007 10TS10°S

00° 101 0005t 00°6vC 000 SBUIAAIA $E302(1  00SE10TS10°S

08 II1S 00°00€$ 0T°881% 00°0% pdey) sdyjowi], 1§ uo *‘wo))

) 000§ sy ov 000 LBPO SWIL 1S 000V 10EV 10°¢

STILT 00052 SL8ET 000 sSun@dN SWIL 1S 00SE 10EV 10°S

09°601% 00°00TS 07°06$ 00°0% SUOIBUTUION] UO 393107y

0005 0008 000 000 IO)Q SUONBUIUON OOV 10PE 10°S

09°6S 00051 0706 000 SBuUnPIN uonBmWON  00SE TOVE 10°S

S6°L6Y 1S 00°00€°9% SO°T08v$ YTISTS wrea [, ANSIUIA [e10)sed

09°L1V 00°00T°1 0'C89 ¥L°89 sasuadxg 12O WONRIOA/NOD  000F SP8T 10°S

S€080°1 00°00T°S S96IT Y 05778 STUNIIIA UOLIBIOA/INOD 00000787 10°S
asuadxsy

LL'6S98TS 00°00L V0TS €T0V0'98TS €TERS TYS awoou] &0,

L6'S69PES 00°00€vS$ £0°909°61$ €0°909°61$ sAojsued J,

00°00€°Z1 00°00€°T1 000 000 punj unupy powlnsay-IIsuel], 0000 0€0V 10V

L6 €6E°8 00°000°€1 £0°909y £0°909 Y pun uupy-uaHy-1fsuel] 000000y 10V

0000071 0000011 000 000 QUOISMO[[I A “M-18Jstel], 0000 010% 10'¥

000 00°000°S1 00°000°S1 00°000°S1 puny [[ySundg-19§sues]  0000'S00¥ 10Y

(0L'195°6%) 00°000°0t$ =0L'F95°6YS 0L GIT'LTS QUWIOUL WPYIQ [FIOL

OL610°8) 000 0L°610°8 0L610°8 punjay 1oV 318D 9[qEPIONIY 0000 S061 10V

(0055 1) 00°000°0¥ *00°SHS 1y 00°001°6 uoddng sAnEnSIIUIPY 00000061 10+

00°0% 00°000°0€$ 00°000°0€$ 00°00S°T$ spuny diysiomaeg pouis

000 00°000°0€ 00°000°0€ 00°005°C SAUBNSINIUIPY - JUBID Yd0o[g 0000 1Z81° 10V

(05°691°99) 00°00%°08$ =05°698°98$ 05" LSE'ES eyde) Joq

(67°566) 00°00¥T1 *6TS6E°¢] eL LIS vOeudeongd 0000020110+

(95908) 00°000°01 ¥957908°01 LYLTY pouAg endeo 4 0000 010110+

($9°L99°%) 00°000°8S %59',99°T9 01°Ter'e "ou] Arnhgsarg ende) 19d 000070001 10

awoouy

Sururemoy|

pgpng enuuy  199png [enuwry  aoueeq (LA A1anoy pousd SUIEN] JUN02IY # 1INy

€Jo 1 a3eq ST0T ‘€7 Atenuep ‘Aeplij

(ADRNSIUTWPY) puny [vIIUIL) 10] HT(T LIQUIAII( JO Sk J10day s, 9105w ],

LIA UBWIdZOg - SUOISMO[I3X JO A191Aqsaigd



00°0s1 00°0ST 000 000 L_YIQ 29 SSUNISN dURULIASPRG 000 TOLL'TOS
901S8 0070001 Y6 Sl 6 08¢ 3T 0018 109L°10°S
09°16¢C 00°00¢ 080T 000 LYo [Puno) - Q00 109L°10°S
LO€8T'T 00001°C £6°918 000 SBUnLIA [PUNO)  00SE109L°10°S
00°0S 0005 000 000 YO UOISSTIL - 000V TOTE 10°C
00059 00059 000 000 SSUNRO UOISSTIAL  00SE10TE10°S
LT'80T‘SS 00'96€8ETS SLLYTECTS '966°01$ [ouuosiag
(TLT$) 00°9¥6°9$ *TL'8P6°9$ 90°6LS$ JoanseaL],
(Tt 009769 +CL'8V6°9 90°6LS Are[eg 12ISBA1],  0099°90€L°T0°S
(Ly9€T9) 00°LYESTS =LV E8SSTS 06'8T€‘TS HI3[D PArels
Y01 009Z¥° 11 96 VT 11 80°CS6 ATe[eS YIO[D PAIBIS  0099+0€L°10°S
YOvL 00 1LLE 96'969°¢ 80°80¢ ‘dxruotsuad  QO6Y YOELTOS
(sspIe) 00001 *SCTIY L 89 SNOJUR[[IISTIA JIO[D PAIBIS 000V POLL 106
00°¢ 00°0¢ 00°Ly 000 STEA HIR[D PAIBIS  00LETVOEL TOC
£TSTTYS 00°€LTT6$ LL'LYO'LSS 9T'¥80°LS 19)4qsaad [eIPUdD)

£¢°L8¢°1 000 ‘dxg sesuadxq ue[d XATI  0018°T0CL'TOS
8€°65S 00°00S°L 79°0¥6°9 8€TeL’T [PABIL dD  008L°C0LL'TOS
ce8el 00°005°1 89°19¢°1 et s[[eD douaIayuo)) 2 uoydad] O 00SLTOEL10S
00°00L 00°00L 000 000 BT APMIS  00ELTOELTOS
€L°620°V 00'960°ST LT990°1T £T8YL “dxg Areles  0099°20€L10°S
(z6'588°1) 00°659°TT *C6VVSYT V' Sv0°T uotsmdd JO  006¥°C0EL'10°S
9¢°C0¢ 00°000°€ ¥9°L69°C 000 Aqiey] - sosuadx snosue[[ROSIA 100V COEL TS
(z6'€¢9) 00°00L «C6°€ETT 869.8 SNOUB[[ISIAN 4D 0007 COELTO'S
89°10¢ 00°050°1 (4514 8T 08I SBIIN D 00LE£T0EL'T0°S
STy 00°00S #*STIPS 000 SuISpoTdD  009£TOELTOS
0°TVI'T 00°895°8T 65TV 9T 99°999°] Suisnoff  001€C0EL10°S
STTUTS 00°06LvCS LL'L99ETS 0€'700°T$ Ja3RUR ‘UIWIPY

(€¢18¢°D 000 ueld XJTJ I8N tpy Q018 T0€L'10°S
696 00°0CI [€0I11 000 [PARL] IS WPy 008L 10€L10°S
(6L vLD) 000L1°€T *6L V€T 0£+00°C Are[eg IS WIWPY 0099 T0EL10°S
000 00°00S°T 00°00S°T 000 SIJOUO IS WPy 00T T 10EL 10°S
(98°07¥%) 00°6V€°STS £98°69L°STS 00°0% ende) Jog
05681) 00 VIV 1L 05 €091 1 000 osT]N osuadxd pouss endeny 19y 0007 CO0L 10°S
(9¢'1£0) 00°5€6°¢1 #9€991%1 000 ST sasuadxg yvO ende) 194 000% 1004 10°S
Suruteuroy
uuwﬁsm Mwﬂdé HDWﬁDm ‘_NSE @Oﬁﬁmm Q,H > bﬂ>50< @Oﬁom MGHNZ UNo2dY % oDy
€ Jo 7 adeq SI0T ‘c7 Atenuep ‘Aeprig

(PADRNSIUTWPY) pun, [RISUIL) J0] H](T QU Jo sk 310day] s, 1aanseaa],

LIA UBUIdZOg - SUOISMO[[A JO A193Aqsald



91Bp 01 p2198pNq JUNOWE SPIIIXS ISUIAXH/QUWON] = 4

0008 0008 98TLO0ES WP
LL'6S9°81S 00°00L%0T$ £T°0V0°981$ LETIS'TIS asuadxy w0,
T0°6ETYS 00°008°91$ 86°099°T1S 97°879% 3O Arayhqsarg
S9108°T 00000°¢ SE861°1 §T9 S[[ED) 99USIRJUOD) 79 SWOYds[3], WO  00SL 1078 10°S
99°786 00°008°1 YELIS 19°02C sorddng 250 00¥2 1028 10°S
00°560°C 00°06£°6 00°S6C°L 00°S¥¢ PDPO- TeIUY 0019108 10°S
(89°8L) 00°09% *89'8¢S 000 SNOJUE[[ISIA PFO 000 10Z8°10°S
000€1 000SL 00029 000 “dxgf sowemsu]  0OTE10Z]10°S
(1esen) 00002 +1€76€€ 000 ‘dxqjwowdimby 0097 10Z8°10°S
(0£959) 0000Z°1 £0€958°1 0’95 a3e150( 79 $a1do) VWO 00YT 1028 10°S
I#'SS6°c$ 00700€°8% 6SHHEYS 00°05+$ sasuadxy A1934qsaig
(00°061) 0000L +00°068 0005t PO Aakgsatd 000 106L°10°S
VA 4N% 00°009°L 6SVSYE 000 sBunaoN A103Aqsard  00SET06L°10°S
L8'LSS €S 00°0S0°S$ STT6H'IS$ ¥6°0€$ jourqe)) digsropedy
000 00°0S 000 000 YO NI YSEL  000F 108LT0°S
(9%°0L) 00°05T *x98°0Z¢ 000 SSUNIIN 2010 SB].  Q0SE T0SLI0S
00°00¢ 00°00€ 000 000 YO 29 FUNIN [PUUOSIdDd  000F 1SLLTOS
ururenray]
108png [enuuy  193png [enuny  aoueRg (LA Ananoy pousg SUIEN] JUNOY # JMOdDY
€Jo ¢ ased - ST10T ‘€7 Aenuep ‘AeplLi]

(AANENSIUTWPY) punj [BIIUIL) J0] HT(T J3GIUIII( JO St 110doy] §,12InSeIU],
LIA UewIdZog - S3UOISMO[[IX JO L13)Aqsarg



21ep 0] Pa198pNq JUNOWE SPAAVXD 2SUIAX/SWOIU] =

0005 0008 ORTLO0ES DU

LL'6S98I$ 00°00LV0T$ £T010°9819 LETISTIS asuadxy [ero,
06TV 00°008°91$ 86°099°C1S 97'879$ O A19)Aqsairg
I¥"SS6°E$ 00°00€‘8S$ 65 PYETS 00°0StS sasuadxy A1a)4qsaig
L8°LSS‘ES 00°0S0°S$ ETT6H'1S ¥6°0€$ purqe) diysiapeay
LT'S0T‘SS 00°9S€°8ETS SLLYT'EETS Ir'966°01$ [puuosIdg
(TL'T$) 00°9¥6°9$ *TL'8V6'9$ 90°6LSS daanseal],
(L¥'9£T8) 00°LPESTS =LV €8S'STS 06'87E°IS 3D PAIeIS
€TSTTHS 00°€LT’TI6S LL'LYOL8S 9T'¥80°LS 19)4qsaad [e1oU3D)
STTIITS 00°06LVTS LL'L99'ETS 0€+00°C$ Jo3euey ‘UIWPY
(98°0T¥$) 00°6b€STS 298'69L°STS 00°0$ ejde) Jog
1S°68Y$ 00°s¥9°c$ 6b'SSTES IS¥ST$ saxe ], [oaded
0T'IIIS 00°00+$ 08'88T$ 00°0% sarpog 1yIQ 0 $3)eTPQ
08'TTI$ 00°00€$ 07'881$ 00°0$ Ppdey) syjoury 3§ Uo "wo)
09°601$ 00°00Z$ 0F'06$ 00°0$ SUOIJRUIWON U0 NN
S6°L6VT$ 00°00€°9$ S0°T08FS$ YTISTS wea ], KNSy [e10)sed

asuadxy
LL'6S9‘81S 00°00L%0T$ €T'0V0°981$ £TEYS VS awodu] [e30],
L6'E69VES 00'00€VSS €0°909°61$ £0°909°61$ saojsue],
(0L '¥95°6$) 00°000°0+$ 0L P9S°6+$ OLGIT'LIS uWodUl JOY)Q [FIOL
00°0$ 00°000°0<$ 00°000°0€$ 00°00S°T$ spuny diysioupreq pouis
(05°69%°9%) 00°00+°08$ x05°698°98$ 0S°LSEES ejide) aog

awooduy

SuruTemy
pdpng enuwy  9Spng [enuuy  oueeq (LLA A1anoy potad JUTEN JUNOIOY #JUNOOOY
1 Jo 1 9ded SI0T ‘ez Arenuep ‘Keprig

(FANRISIITWPY) PUn] [RISUID 10§ $TOT I13qUIIB( JO s' Ja0doy §,42anseau,

LIA UeUIdZOg - SUOISMO[RX JO A1914qsaaq



(L6°66€) 00°000°01 +L6°66€01 000 osTIA sSunig NS wreIsold 000y TSST10°S
0000L 00°000°C 00°00€'T 000 ST DI wressoid surefdeyd 000y 1SST10°S
0000T 00°00¢C 000 000 S[BIN 29 [9ABLL, P PYSIH 000V 0SST10°S
88°9PTS 00°0S0°9€S TI°€08°sES 81°866% ynox 2 Surdwe)
(sT'870) 0000¢ *ST8TS 000 S[ESJA 2 [PABLL UIUPY 0001 S6L1°10°S
(L890T°D 00°000°S *L8°90T°9 000 SDOJUR[[IISTN SIWOAT 000V 06LT°10°S
000 00700S°C 00°00S°C 000 wniuual ] 0T09°08€1 1076
000ST 000S¢T 000 000 digsioquaN VOOOd 0007 S9ET10°S
00619 00°000°€¢ 00°18€°C 0L.98 sondg IopsruTUnSaM SA0IN  00€8°09¢1°10°S
€509 00008 LY S61 000 sng-uoneyodsuel],  O1LL09€1°10°S
007001 00001 000 000 Suunmg 06 09€1°10°S
66 9¥C 00005 10°¢ST 000 sonddng Q0L 09€T°10°S
000£C 00°000°1 00°0LL 000 Sungeyg-1mowdmby [gesy 0079 09€1°10°S
creie 0000¢ 88°L3 000 “dxy snosuef[adsIN  000F 09€T10°S
S1°06¢ 00°00S°€ $8°601°¢ 000 PooJ  0067°09¢1°10°S
(69°18T°0) 00°000°6 #*69 18T 11 000 jugdwe)d  00v109€1°10°S
(¥0°0) 00700S°€ x70005°€ €86 1xeIeR) due)  0OZI09E1° 10°S
01'L8Y 00005 06Cl 000 Awignd  00LS1SETT10°S
(89°05) 00009 +89°059°Y y1°8C¢ douemsu]  0OTLISELTOS
SrLY 00°000°T 8¥'6TE 000 SOUBUAUIBIA] SoUI[E] Q08T ISEL10S
00°00C 00°00¢C 000 000 ‘dxg a8eis0d 3 sordo)  OPTISEL10°S
asuadxsy
£'868°TIS 00°00L°€8S LS'T080LS 68°'768°9$ JTOdU] [BJ0],
(L1965T) 00°005°1 «L1°960°€ 000 SWOIU] WeIZ0I SNOAUE[[ROSIAL  0000°00ST 10°Y
20°SIH'8IS 00°00T°LES 86'98L°8I$ 86°980°CS sagjsued ], wessorq
T0EIv 81 00°005°0C 86980°C 86'980°C SIATaSY w0y 1fsuel] 0000 0607 10V
000 00°00L°91 00°00L°91 000 spunj vvumﬁwﬁmoﬂ WoIy I3]Stel |, Jueln) 0000080V 10F
(00°csH€$) 00°000°07$ =00°ESH'ETS 00°0% dwodu] dwre)
(00520°€) 00°000°S +00°ST0°8 000 sonpoe ] dwe) Jo a1ty 0000 0VP1 10%
(00'8L0 1) 00°000°F +00'8L0°C 000 SIHAAY [[B ] “IoUIung Iuipy - 0000°0€r T 10
00059 00°000°TT 00°05£°01 000 $93 dwre) soumung 0000 0TV 10V
(Trsovse) 00°000°ST$ =TP'SIP'STS 16°L08VS a3pald
(Trsor) 00°000°5T * TV S9¥°ST 16'L08Y 99pa[d UOISSIIA] [BIOUSD (0000 01C1 [0V
WooUy
Sururetuay
198png renuuy 198png [enuuy aduereq (ILA AnAnoy pousq QUIBN] JUNODDY # 1UN000Y
TJo 1 93eq S10T ‘6T Arenuwr ‘Keprig

(we1304J) pun, [RISUI) 10§ 1T F2qUII( JO S 110doY] §,42.INSLILY,

LIA UewIdzZog - JUGISMO[[D X JO A191Aqsaid



31Bp 01 Pa193png JUNOWIE SPAIIXD ISUIAXH/QWOOU] = 4

00708 00°0S 00°0SFSS U
£7'868°T1$ 00°00L°€8% LS'TOS°0LS 68'PFF' 1S asuadxy [eyo],
TL8I8°SS 00°005°61$ STTILYCTIS 1L°9vF$ sasuodxy £19)4qsd14
LS 60V°T 00°000°S1 £ 065°C1 1L9vv ATe[eS {O PABSOI[V 0007 0L6L 10°S
00°000°C 00°000°C 000 000 sBunoo ™IS 000 096L°10°S
ST'6I¥1 00°005°1 808 000 1010 weigord AIDIAGSALd 000V 0S6L10°S
000 00°000°T 00°000°T 000 dxg uoneooAuo) 000 €06L10°S
00°0ST$ 00°0SL°€S 00°00S°€$ 00°0% S9d.INY) JO UONBIVOSSY I
00°0S¢C 00°0S¢C 000 000 ISTIN ﬁoﬁﬁﬂumoumo;m IVIN 000t"CS8C 10°S
000 00°005°¢ 00°005°¢ 0070 STOSUR[[IISTIAL dIYSIIQUISI DVIN 0001 15857 10°S
SL°T06°T$ 00°000°$ ST'L6OTS 00°0$ puIqe) digsrepea]
00°0Tv 00'000°1 007085 000 diysIopea ] WaIsoNy, 000V 081€°10°S
00°000°T 00°000°1 000 00°0 Anstut] uonedaguo) 000V 091£°10°S
SLT8Y 1 00°000°C STLIS 000 w1801 UOISSIIA U0 0D 000K 0STE 10°S
S0°0L9‘ES 00°00L°€$ $6°67$ 0008 wed ], LysIuljy [edojsed
00°00L°T 00°00L°1 000 000 DYIO-SUONBdI0A 000V £S8T10°S
00°000°1 00°000°1 000 000 “dx7] Swrjesuno)) wae)) Aouddotuy GO0V ZSST10°S
S0'0L6 00°000°1 S6'6C 000 Surure1] -AnsIury Uo oNmII0)  00LL6V8T10°S
€0°0$ 00°00L°01$ L6°669°91$ 00°0% uopeInpy JAYIH
(00°009) 00005 ¥ +00°000°S 000 ST Tewozog (JSN WeISold  000F €SST10°S
Sururenay
198png [enuuy 193png [enuuy ouered LA Aanoy pousd SUIEN JUN02Y #1UNOY
7)o 7 9deq S107 ‘c7 Arenuer ‘Aepliy

(wreaSoag) puny [€I2UIS) 10] H1(T AU JO Sk 110doy] S, I0.InSBIL],

LIA UBWISZOG] - SUOISMO[[DX JO A19)Aqsaag



91ep 01 pa1efpnq JUNOWR SPARYXS ISUIAXH QWO = 4

0008 0003 000SFSS U

£+'868°C1$ 00°00L°€8$ LS'T08°0LS 68 7P 1S asuadxy [ejo,
IL°878'S$ 00°00S°61$ STILIETIS IL'9¥Y$ sasuadxy £12)Aqsaxg
00°0SZ$ 00°0SL'€S 00°00S‘€$ 00°0$ $3YOINT) JO UONRIIOSSY I
SL'T06°TS 00°000°$ STLGOTS 00°0$ jpuIqe) diystopea]
$0"0L9‘ES 00°00L°€$ $6°67$ 0008 wed [, ANSTUA] [edo)sed
£0°0$ 00°00L91$ L6°'669°91$ 00°0$ uopedINpy PY3H
88°9¥TS 00°0S0°9€$ TIe08‘ses 81°866% pnox 7 durdure)

asuadxsy
£V"868°CIS 00°00L°€8S LS'TO8'0LS 68°768°9$ dweduy [&)0 ],
WETH SIS 00°00Z°LES 86'98L'S1$ 86'980°C$ saopsuel ], weidold
(00°€SHeS) 00°000°0Z$ <00°€SY€TS 00°0% awodu] dure)
(T sors) 00°000°SZ$ *Th'SV'STS 16°L08 VS adpald

uoouy

Surureuray
198png [enuuy 123png [enuny douered (ILA A1ATI0Y polad QWEN] JUNO020Y # 1UMoo0Yy
[ Jo 1 93eq ST0T ‘€T Arenuep ‘Aepray

(weidoa]) puny [eI3UdL) 10J HTOT JRqUIAIA( JO se J10daY §,19.INSBAL],

LIA UBHIdZOg] - SUOISMO[[3X JO A19)Aqsaag






A portion of the letter which was sent to the sessions of Stanford and Geyser, Nov. 14, 2014
Regarding per capita payments:

The Pastoral Team (named above) met with the Leadership Cabinet, and with co-general presbyters
George and Kathy Goodrich and stated clerk Ron Hanson, in a specially called meeting on Thursday,
November 6, 2014. Our purpose was to hear the concerns of the Stanford and Geyser congregations
specifically regarding the Presbytery of Yellowstone. One issue which came to our attention was per
capita. We heard from the Pastoral Team that when your congregations chose not to pay per capita in
2013, no one at the presbytery, synod, or General Assembly level replied to your letters explaining why
you were not paying. As the Leadership Cabinet of the presbytery, we apologize for this neglect of our
valued relationship with you. We pledge to do better in the future.

We also heard your distress that the presbytery paid per capita in full to synod and General Assembly,
thereby stifling your voice of dissent regarding denominational decisions. We ask your understanding
that according to the Book of Order, per capita is voluntary for congregations but required for
presbyteries. In other words, your congregations are not out of order with our constitution when you
choose not to pay per capita. But if our presbytery were to make such a choice, we would be choosing
not to comply with our constitution. Thus, the presbytery is in a bind, needing to choose between
honoring the request of a congregation and the covenantal agreement we have with the larger church
to honor the constitution. We pledge to you that the Leadership Cabinet will revisit our policy at our
next scheduled meeting in January. We encouraged the Pastoral Team to continue to discuss with you
how to make your voice heard regarding denominational decisions and trends. We hope that you will be
part of the presbytery’s discussions of these issues as well. We value and need your voice, and your
perspective.

Loy TS erd
J 4

. / b o’ . t.-‘ : I
‘j‘(/)‘\ &Lé fk{xd}/ ‘?T’ /J'/Lae ‘5\-“?4‘5{:-&3 é((l/_) ( ,‘.‘.‘4-5'2- ?\_‘3%

s






AWNOT ATED Pook. oF L)'QD@Q) G -Z0/06, Adorinyshztay, a//?/,js,,,‘h

higher councils, and in consultation between bodies concerning mission, budget, staffing and fair
employment practices, and matters of equitable compensation.

The funding of mission similarly demonstrates the unity and interdependence of the church. The failure
of any part of the church to participate in the stewardship of the mission of the whole church diminishes
that unity and interdependence. All mission funding should enable the church to give effective witness
in the world to God’s new creation in Jesus Christ, and should strengthen the church’s witness to the
mission of God.

Each council above the session shall prepare a budget for its operating expenses, including
administrative personnel, and may fund it with a per capita apportionment among the particular
congregations within its bounds. Presbyteries are responsible for raising their own funds and for raising
and timely transmission of per capita funds to their respective synods and the General Assembly.
Presbyteries may direct per capita apportionments to sessions within their bounds, but in no case shall
the authority of the session to direct its benevolences be compromised.

Amend Rejected (2014, 18, 167, Item 03-02): Rejected allowing pbys to remit only per capita funds actually
received. Comment: “We respectfully remind presbyteries of the flexibility available under the 1999
authoritative interpretation. We also respecttully remind sessions of their respective covenantal responsibilities
to both the presbytery and General Assembly.”

Amend Rejected (2012, 10, 79, Item 03-02): Rejected request to allow presbyteries to forward only per capita
funds received to synod and GA.

Amend Rejected (2002, 41, 182, [tem 03-07, Ovt 02-15): Rejected allowing pbys to forward to synod and GA
only the amount they can collect, and would have nullified 1999 Authoritative Interpretations (see below). But
pbys are urged to partner and work pastorally with churches and work to alleviate reasons for sessions’
withholding per capita.

Amend Rejected (2001, 45, 391, Ovt 01-1): Rejected requiring sessions to raise and transmit per capita funds to
pby, with comment: “we urge sessions to contribute per capita especially in seasons if disagreement. uncertainty
and controversy. Together we shoulder the burden and blessing of our bonds.”

Amend Rejected (1985, 150, 17.199, Ovt. 75-85): Rejected request for change to require approval of the next
higher governing body for establishment of administrative staff positions.

GA (2010, 79, 240, Item 03-28): “A presbytery is required to remit to the General Assembly and the synod per
capita funds remitted by the session of member churches for per capita, even if the presbytery lacks sufficient
funds to pay its own expenses.”

GA (2006, 46-47, Ttem 03-08): Disapproved an overlure asking for Authoritative Interpretation of per capita;
instead encouraged congregations to take seriously their commitment to connectional nature of church and
presbyteries to use pastoral care with congregations that withhold per capita.

GA (2006, 46, 48, Item 03-12): Rejected request to speculate on circumstances that would prevent pby
payment.

GA (1999, 65, 107, 16.001-.007, Req. 99-1): (1) Presbytery has responsibility to remit per capita allocations to
synod and GA, even if a cong. does not pay per capita allocated to it by pby.

GA (2) Pby may use unrestricted funds (whether collected as per capita or general benevolence) to pay per
capita allocations to synod and GA.

GA, (1995, 2811f. 21.120, Regs. 91-18, 92-3, and 93-14): Extensive treatment on powers which a pby should
not delegate.

GA (1995, 280, 21.112, Ref. Ovt 92-54): General Assembly Council is required to report to GA all task force
recommendations.

GA (1991, 390, 21.047, Req. 91-5): The form of reports to pby of those accountable 1o it is left to the discretion
of pby.



GA (1990, 238, 21.111, Req. 90-1): Participation in presbytery actions is limited to ministers and elders. If
non-elders are members of a delegated body, they serve with voice but no vote.

GA (1987, 146, 15.207, Com. 7-87): A governing body may delegate particular aspects of its task to other
entities, but always on the basis of accountability to the governing body. Requires reporting of all actions of pby
council to pby; no exceptions.

PJC (2010, 219-07, Pby of Wyoming v Gordon R.J. King): “Individuals have the responsibility to know the
policies of the governing bodies [now councils] they serve.”

PJC (2006, 217-9, Synod of the Northeast v. Board of Pensions): Thel95th GA established the Board of
Pensions; the 198th GA approved the Benefits Plan; the GA thus delegated to the Board fiduciary responsibility
under Pennsylvania law.

PJC (2006, 217-2, 462, Johnston, et.al. v. Heartland Pby): PJC (1) “Payment of per capita apportionments is a
high moral obligation, the fulfillment of which visibly demonstrates the covenantal ties that bind us as the one
church of Jesus Christ.”

PJC (2) Pby’s declaration that a church is ineligible to request financial assistance it per capita is not fully paid
is misuse of discretion.

PJC (2006, 217-1, Hope, et.al. v. Pby of San Francisco): Failure to follow its own stated policy does not rise to
the level of a constitutional error reviewable by the GAPJC.

PJC (2004, 216-6, Hope v. Pby of San Francisco): Pby has wide discretion in evaluating a candidate’s readiness
for ministry.

PCJ (2) Pby must communicate substance of concerns that form the basis for a recommendation of removal to
allow the candidate a fair opportunity to respond.

PIC (2004, 216-1, Minihan v. Pby of Scioto Valley): (1) 1992 Amendment did not grant a presbytery power to
compel a session to transmit its per capita apportionment.

PJC (2) The term “benevolences” in responsibilities of the session includes per capita funds.

PIC (3) Withholding per capita as a means of protest or dissent evidences a serious breach of the trust and love
with which our Lord Jesus intends the covenant community to function together.

PJC (1998, 210-10, Dickson v. Synod of SW): Correspondence and overtures from one governing body to
another must be communicated to members, commissioners.

PJC (1992, 204-5, Session of Central Church v. Pby of Long Island): Pby may not compel or punish a church
whose session determines the distribution of the congregation’s benevolences in a way contrary to the pby’s
approved policy of financing higher governing body mission with per capita.

Earlier References:
(UPC, 1976, 228, Westminster Church v. Pby of Detroit):

(UPC 1977, 412-415): GAMC report on per capita related to Westminster Church case (1976, 228) and Ovt. 71
(1976, 197).

(UPC 1969, 459-555): Report of Spec. Comm. on Regional Synods and Church Administration. Ovt H adopted
1970. (UPC 1978, 164; UPC 1979, 215): Review of synods and presbyteries.

Hist. Note (PCUSA, 1870, 59): per member contribution; (PCUSA, 1803, 282; 1807, 384-6): decision to aid
commissioners from distant pbys attending GA.



ADVISORY OPINION:
PER CAPITA

“All believers, are therefore, under obligation to sustain the ordinances of the Christian religion
where they are already established, and to contribute by their prayers, gifts, and personal efforts
to the extension of the Kingdom of God throughout the whole eart, 4

“The funding of mission similarly demonstrates the unity and interdependence of the church.
The failure of any part of the church to participate in the stewardship of the mission of the whole
church diminishes that unity and interdependence.”

WHAT IS PER CAPITA?

“Per capita is an opportunity for all communicant members of the Presbyterian church through
the [councils] to participate equally, responsibly, and interdependently by sharing the cost of
coordination and evaluation of mission; and of performing ecclesiastical, legislative, and judicial
functions that identify a Reformed Church, while at the same time strengthening the sense of
community among all Presbyterians.”” Thus, per capita is a fundamental way in which the nearly
11,000 congregations and councils of the Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.) are connected in
covenantal relationship and faithfully participate in the work of the wider church.*

WHAT ARE THE PRINCIPLES THAT GUIDE OUR UNDERSTANDING OF PER CAPITA?

“To each is given the manifestation of the Spirit for the common good” > and “God calls
believers today to be disciplined and generous in giving support to the ministries of the church.”®
Per capita is part of the glue that holds Presbyterians together by supporting various ministries in
our church. Per capita exists to allow the whole church to share equitably in those things that
make us Presbyterian—our connectedness, our system of councils that allow ruling elders and
teaching elders together to discern the mind of Christ, our core structures that keep us together as
a church, and our call to work for full participation in decision-making. Further, per capita allows
us to work with other churches to further the witness and mission of Jesus Christ in the world.’
To this end, per capita is a form of stewardship at the presbytery, synod, and General Assembly
levelg allowing us to use our gifts, talents, and resources to promote the mission of the triune
God.

WHAT IS THE CONGREGATION’S ROLE REGARDING PER CAPITA?

“The congregation is the church engaged in the mission of God in its particular context. The
triune God gives to the congregation all the gifts of the gospel necessary to being the Church.”
“While possessing all the gifts necessary to be the church,” congregations are “not sufficient in
themselves to be the church.”'® Accordingly, congregations “are called to share with others both
within and beyond themselves the task of bearing witness to the Lordship of Jesus Christ in the
world.”"! Thus, congregations are “bound together in communion with one another, united in
relationships of accountability and responsibility, contributing their strengths to the benefit of the
whole, and are called, collectively, the church.”'?

Through their sessions, congregations pay an annual amount of money per church member—per
capita apportionment—to their respective presbyteries.13 The per capita amount requested from a
congregation is a combined total of requests from that congregation’s presbytery, the synod in



which the presbytery is located and the General Assembly—Dbased on their respective budgets for
the coming year(s).14

While the Book of Order does not mandate the payment of per capita by congregations through
their sessions, it also does not provide the right to sessions and congregations to withhold per
capita as a form of protest. “Withholding per capita as a means of protest or dissent evidences a
serious breach of the trust and love with which our Lord Jesus intends the covenant community
to function together.”15 Further, the PC(USA), through the General Assembly Permanent Judicial
Commission, has declared that withholding per capita as means to further a political/theological
agenda is never justiﬁed.16

If the session acting on behalf of the congregation withholds per capita, the presbytery is
obligated to remit per capita when it has funds available and visit with the session to determine
the cause of the withholding.'” If membership loss in the congregation has resulted in insufficient
funds and is the cause of the withholding, the presbytery has an opportunity to work through this
issue with the Office of the General Assembly.18 Further, while a congregation withholding per
capita through its session diminishes the unity and interdependence of the church, it is important
to recognize that the presbytery still has the responsibility for the subsequent care and support of
this congregation.

WHAT IS THE PRESBYTERY’S ROLE REGARDING PE R CAPITA?
G-3.0106 states that the presbytery shall:

Prepare a budget for its operating expenses, including administrative personnel, and may
fund it with a per capita apportionment among the particular congregations within its
bounds. Presbyteries are responsible for raising their own funds and for raising and
timely transmission of per capita funds to their respective synods and the General
Assembly. Presbyteries may direct per capita apportionments to sessions within their

bounds, but in no case shall the authority of the session to direct its benevolences be
comprornised.zo

Each presbytery begins with the General Assembly and their synod per capita rates and adds the
amount needed to support its specific mission and administrative functions. A presbytery’s per
capita rate requested from its congregations may depend on its geographical location, size,
mission, and the needs of the respective synod.

A “presbytery has the responsibility to remit per capita allocations to synod and General
Assembly, even though the congregation does not pay the per capita allocated to it by the
presbytery. .. as long as funds are available within the presbytery.”21 Further, while budgeting
and receiving of funds from a congregation may be handled in a variety of ways by
presbyteries, it is important to recognize that the presbytery is responsible for paying per capita
no matter how they choose to solicit the funds.

Furthermore, a presbytery: (1) may not use a congregation’s payment of per capita as a condition
of eligibility for the congregation’s requesting financial assistance of the presbytery;22 (2) may
not condition receipt of financial assistance solely upon full payment of per capi’ca;23 (3) has the
right and discretion “to consider a congregation’s financial participation in the life of the larger



church as one of many factors as it crafts policies and exercises pastoral care”;” and (4) has a
duty to “engage in conversation about their efforts to participate fully in the mission of the larger
church.”®

WHEN A SESSION PAYS PER CAPITA, CAN A PRESBYTERY WITHHOLD THE PER CAPITA FROM
THE SYNOD AND GENERAL ASSEMBLY?

No. Occasionally, presbyteries have collected monies designated by congregations as per capita
and kept it for their own expenses. In response to this specific situation, the 219th General
Assembly (2010) reminded us through an authoritative interpretation that, “a presbytery is
required to remit to the General Assembly and the synod per capita funds remitted by the session
of member churches for per capita, even if the presbytery lacks sufficient funds to pay its own
expenses.”*® The 219th Assembly further reminded us that the presbytery is the only connection
between the stewardship decisions of the session and the General Assembly and synod.”’

WHAT IS THE SYNOD’S ROLE REGARDING PER CAPITA?

The synod is responsible for the life and mission of the church throughout its region and for
supporting the mission of its presbyteries as they seek to support the witness of congregations.”®
In addition to allowing the synod to provide educational resources, nurture, and support to
presbyteries and congregations within its bounds, per capita also helps synods provide
“encouragement, guidance, resources, to presbyteries in the areas of mission, prophetic witness,
leadership development, worship, evangelism and responsible administration.”

WHAT IS THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY’S ROLE REGARDING PER CAPITA?

The “General Assembly constitutes the bond of union, community and mission among all its
congregations and councils, to the end that the whole church becomes a community of faith,
hope, love and witness.”*® Per capita dollars support the work of the General Assembly by not
only continuing this bond of union, community and mission within our church, but also allowing
the General Assembly to provide our church with “services, resources, and programs performed
most effectively at a national level.””' The General Assembly per capita rate is set every two
years at the biennial General Assembly meeting. At each General Assembly, a proposed budget
for the coming two-year period is approved. The per capita rate is set by dividing the total
General Assembly approved budget by the total PC(USA) church membership after adjusting for
income carned from investments and the amount of accumulation or reserves used in the prior
period.

WHAT IS THE HISTORICAL PRACTICE AND UNDERSTANDING OF PER CAPITA IN THE
PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH?

The earliest reference to per capita comes from a 1734 statement to teaching elders:

...tis unaminously [sic] agreed by all the members of ye Synod, yt every Ministr. Shall
either seasonally propose the affair, and read the Synod’s Lettr. To their respectivie
Congregations and appoint a Day for a publick Collection, if there be occasion for such a
Step to carry on ye Design, or oblige themselves to pay out of their own proprer Estates
ten shillings into the Fund; and yt every Presbry take Care yt their respective members
observe an ord. Made in ye year 1736....>2

In 1966, the General Assembly of the Presbyterian Church in the United States stated:



We feel pastoral concemn over the current unrest regarding benevolence giving in our
denomination. We believe that it manifests a lack of understanding of the procedures
regarding the Central Treasurer...[T]he General Assembly, in the interest of supporting
the Church in its endeavor or to focus collectively its influence in the world, urges all
Sessions to support the benevolence program of the Presbyterian Church in the United
States, through these Presbyterian procedurf:s....”33

While strongly rooted in our history, per capita continues to be source of modem debate. In
1976, the General Assembly Permanent Judicial Commission (United Presbyterian Church in the
United States of America) in Westminster Church v. Presbytery of Detroit, while finding that the
presbytery had exceeded its authority in removing the pastor and replacing the session for refusal
to remit per capita, observed:

When presbyteries, synods, and the General Assembly meet, they are conducting the
legislative or judicial business of the Church and incur necessary expenses. There are also
necessary administrative expenses involved which enable these legislative and judicial
functions to be performed. All these expenses should be shared throughout the Church
because every one who is a [Presbyterian] shares in the benefits of this system of
government.... Willful refusal to contribute, however, is symptomatic of serious problems
within a congregation or session, whether they be financial, theological, or stem from a
lack of understanding or appreciation of the connectional nature of our denomination.**

In 2002, the 214th General Assembly reaffirmed our historic understandings when it urged the
presbyteries: “(1) to partner with those churches who struggle financially to pay per capita, and
(2) to work pastorally with those sessions who choose to withhold per capita.”35 To sessions, the
Assembly also said, “individual sessions are reminded that to withhold per capita puts at
jeopardy the connectional and covenantal nature of our church that is affirmed by our ordination

VOWS 536

With its beginnings over 275 years ago, per capita continues to promote the mission of the triune
God and the connectional and covenantal nature of the PC(USA) by helping the church live into
its calling as a community of faith, hope, love and witness.”’

UPDATED OCTOBER 2012

' Westminster Confession of Faith (6.058).

2 G-3.0106

3 GA Minutes, Part I, 1995.

4 For additional resources and information on per capita see: hitp://oga.pc usa,org/section/departments/per-capital;

for frequently asked questions see htip:/ oga.peusa.org/section/departments/per-capitey [requently-asked-questions/;
see also lmp:.-'f\v\\'w.pcusa,o|'_'_;:'mL:dis;lr|.1pEmu[s-.'ugu.*pdf}'pcrcapi[a_g_n‘_:_lwl‘a'l,ptn‘,
°1 Cor. 127

6 W-2.5003b. W-2.5003a (3-4) further reminds us that offering material gifts and goods is an affirmation by Christ’s
disciples of “their desire to share God’s gifts with those to whom believers are bound the Church universal” and
“their common bond in the body of Christ.” Further, W-5.5004 states, “giving has always been a mark of Christian
commitment and discipleship. The ways in which a believer uses God’s gifts of material goods, personal abilities,
and time should reflect a faithful response to God’s self-giving in Jesus Christ and Christ’s call to minister to and



share with others in the world. Tithing is a primary expression of the Christian discipline of stewardship.” See also
The Second Helvetic Confession 5.211.
7 See F-1.0301 noting, “the church is to be a community of witness, pointing beyond itself through word and work to
the good news of God’s transforming grace in Christ Jesus its Lord; see also Minutes of 218th GA (Minutes, 2008,
Part. I, p. 165).
¥ See G-3.0106; see also F-1.01.
? G-1.0101; see also G-3.0101.
" 1d.
' G-3.0101.
> G-1.0101.
1* See G-3.0202f.
" 1t is important to note that presbyteries may ask congregations to contribute in a variety of ways, including per
capita. The presbytery may designate the amount of per capita specifically to a congregation or solicit funds in more
general ways.
5 PJC (2004, 350, 216-1, Minihan v. Pby of Scioto Valley); see also G-1.0102 reminding us that, “the polity of the
Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.) presupposes the fellowship of women, men, and children united in covenant
relationship with one another and with God through Jesus Christ. The organization rests on the fellowship and is not
iiﬁesigned to work without trust and love.”
Id.
"7 GA (2006, 46-47, Item 03-08)
'® For more information about this process as well as about relevant deadlines, please contact the Budget Office in
the Office of the General Assembly (OGA).
"” See G-3.0106; W-5.5004.
% G-3.0106
*L GA (1999, 65, 107, 16.008-.009, Reg. 99-1)
22 PJC (2006, 217-2, 462, Johnston, et.al. v. Heartland Pby).
1.
.
1.
26 GA (2010, 79, 240, Item 03-28).
1.
¥ G-3.0401
? G-3.0401c
30 G-3.0501
31 G-3.0501¢
32 Minutes, Synod of Philadelphia, 1738, p. 56.
33 Minutes, Presbyterian Church in the United States, General Assembly, 1966, pp. 28, 87, Ovt 17.
* UPC, 1976, 228, Westminster Church v. Pby of Detroit.
33 GA Minutes (2002, 41, 182, Item 03-07, Ovt 02-15).







LN

U
lly

PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH (U.S.A.)

OFFICE OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY

GRADYE PARSONS

STATED CLERK

December 15, 2014

Dear Presbytery Moderators and BExecutive Staff:

Advent greetings to each of you in this wondrous, yet often busy season. Before Christmas, but with Christmas very much in mind,

[ wanted to send this letter out (both in paper and online). It concerns that phrase, “Peace on Earth.”

One of the assignments given the Stated Clerk at the 2215t General Assembly (2014) was the distribution of five affirmations on
peacemaking to the presbyteries for a recorded, advisoty vote. These affirmations are attached, along with short summaties of
background material in the full repost, “Risking Peace in a Violent World.” Like all other Assembly business, it is posted online with
the link provided in the four-page resource that I encoutrage you to provide to your presbyters. The four-pager also summarizes the

stages in the process of “Peace Discernment” approved by the Assembly in 2010, 2012, and 2014.

For your convenience, an Internet-based response form has been created to submit your votes and advisement electronically. You
will receive an email with the link to the form or you may also find the link on the Peacemaking Program and Advisory Committee
for Social Witness Policy websites. You may also use the attached one-page response form, if you prefer to complete the form
manually. All responses will be read catrefully by the AAdvisory Committee and the Peacemaking Program. Similar response forms are
being shared with our Presbyterian seminaries and church-related colleges and universities, some of whose faculty have participated
in ptior discussion of the issues involved. The Peace Discernment Steeting Team, a group of primarily younger Presbyterians with
international experience, suggests that each affitmation be voted separately, although that would be yous presbytery’s decision.
Similatly, they would welcome your presbytery proposing your own vetsions of the affitmations, if you wish—the General Assembly

made several changes of its own.

T am often asked by Christian leaders from around the wotld to address ongoing watfare and new military campaigns. Since 1980, we
have been guided by Peacemaking: The Believers’ Calling and subsequent statements building on that social witness policy. Massive
amounts of US wealth have been spent on military operations, particulazly since 9 /11. More importantly, millions of lives have been
lost and been damaged, including over 5,000 US military deaths, with thousands more wounded. As Reformed Christians, we own

our part in our nation’s tesponsibility for this activity.

These five affirmations are NOT policy statements, but ways to test the thinking and fecling of our church in the key council of the
presbytety. I encourage you to make time in your busy dockets, and also to provide time and background for thoughtful discussion
and informed voting. The Peacemaking Program (peacemaking(@pcusa.org) is prepared to offer assistance, as is the Advisory
Committee on Social Witness Policy (acswp@pcusa.org). Rev. Alonzo Johnson, Jr., new Peacemaking Program staff member, will
be resourcing the discussions of the affirmations. He can be reached at Alonzo Johnson@pcusa.org if you need any assistance.

In service of the Prince of Peace,

M@W

The Reverend Gradye Parsons
Stated Cletk of the General Assembly
Presbyterian Church (U.S.A))

100 WITHERSPOON STREET LOUISVILLE, KENTUCKY 40202-1396 1-888-728-7228 FAX 502-569-8005






Montana Association of Christians (MAC)
(see 2 attachments)

From George Goodrich, January 8, 2015

1. Consider the invitation to the presbytery be a chartering organization of the’
Montana Association of Christians. Montana Association of Churches is now defunct
and the new organization is the new MAC. Attached, please find the invitation to
congregations, but it is the same for the presbytery.

2. 1In our 2015 Program Budget $3,50@ is included for MAC. I think a vote would
be in order to affirm that our previously intended contribution to MAC be
reallocated to the new MAC.

3. That we consider voting to forward to all of our congregations the
covenanting documents for the new MAC, again, which are attached.



Faith * Unity * Justice * Compassion

WORKING TOGETHER

American Baptist Churches
of the Northwest

Christian Church
(Disciples of Christ)
in Montana

Episcopal Church
Diocese of Montana

Evangelical Lutheran
Church in America
Montana Synod

Presbyterian Church (USA)
Glacier Presbytery

Presbyterian Church (USA)
Yellowstone Presbytery

United Church of Christ
Montana/Northern Wyoming
Conference

United Methodist Church
Yellowstone Conference

432 Angus Dr. Belgrade, MT 59714
Pamela J. Shelden Administrator
Phone: (406) 449-6010 mac(@macmt.org

macmt.org

December 10,2014
Dear Sisters and Brothers in Christ,

On behalf of the Montana Association of Christians (MAC) I invite your congregation
to consider becoming a member of MAC. :

MAC is a forty-one year old Christian ecumenical organization dedicated to secking
unity among Christian denominations in Montana. For over four decades we have lived out
this unity through service and advocacy that is dedicated to God's justice.

This fall MAC decided to open up its membership possibilities. Formerly, MAC was
an association of denominational units (synods, presbyteries, dioceses, districts, and the like).
MAC's annual assembly voted to make it possible for congregations, individuals, and non-
profit organizations also to become members. With this change, MAC changed its name from
the Montana Association of Churches to the Montana Association of Christians. In addition,
MAC has created a system in which Ministry Teams are created by its members to do the work
of MAC in timely ways around the issues of the day. The goal of these changes is to create
possibilities for much greater participation for Christians around our state to work together.

Would your congregation consider partnering with MAC during these exciting new
days? Many Christian congregations find energy and excitement through ecumenical work.
Becoming a member of MAC would allow your congregation to be part of an ecumenical
movement that is state-wide.

MAC has a wonderful history, born in the grand days of major ecumenical break-
throughs. MAC is known for: its important voice against anti-semitism in Billings in the early
2000's; its events held around the state to help rural communities and farmers during the
agricultural crisis; its thoughtful way of creating position papers on important issues of the
day; and its advocacy at the Montana Legislature. For example, during this upcoming
legislative session MAC will work with a lobbyist to advocate in four areas: abolishing the
death penalty in favor of life without parole, caring for the welfare of children, reforming the
ways prisoners are reintegrated into society, and care for immigrants. This is important
Christian work!

If your congregation shares in the values expressed in MAC's mission statement and is
interested in working with other Christian congregations, individuals, families, non-profit
organizations, and denominations in Montana, please fill out the attached membership
covenant, return it to our office, and consider making a financial contribution of any amount to
our shared work. MAC will keep you up-to-date on its events and service opportunities in
which your congregation can be involved. Thank you!

May Christ's grace and peace be with you,
Rev. Peter Erickson

President of the Montana Association of Christians
Pastor of Our Savior's Lutheran Church, Columbia Falls, MT

MAC’s Mission: We are called together by God 1o

¢ Pray together as one
*  Be present in our state’s broken places
¢ Walk in the freedom and openness of the Holy Spirit



Faith * Unity * Justice = Compassion

"Montana Association cf Christians

We believe in God,three in one,unity and Trinity;
The God of Abraham and Sarah,
Isaac and Rebecca,
Jacob and Rachel;
The God who creates all things,
the God who saves,
the God who sanctifies;
The God whom Jesus called abba,
the God fully expressed in Jesus,
whom God and Mary called Son;
The God called Holy Spirit,
known as ruah and paraclete of God,
who is present in the world to lead in holiness;
And who wills “that they may be one. . .
so that the world may know that you have sent me
and have loved them even as you loved me.”

rMemﬁersﬁg’p Covenant for a Congregation

YES! This congregation wants to join with MAC's member judicatories, individuals, families, and other
non-profit organizations as they respond to God’s call to:

*  Make visible our unity in Jesus

* Pray together as one

*  Be present in our state’s broken places

*  Walk in the freedom and openness of the Holy Spirit.
We commit our prayers, our participation, and financial contributions for the work of MAC.

Signature of Congregational Representative date

Congregation Name
Email Address
Address

Our congregation is particularly interested in participating in
planning ecumenical prayer services advocating in the Montana legislature
working with special interest teams serving in mission



